
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

Date and Time of Meeting:   Thursday, May 23, 2013, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Place of Meeting:     Washoe County Health District 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B 
South Auditorium 
Reno, Nevada  89520 

 
District Board of Health Meeting Agenda 

 
All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible action” 
were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no 
action will be taken. 

 

Time 
Agenda 

Item 
No. 

Agenda Item Presenter 

1:00 PM *1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance Led by Invitation 
 

Mr. Smith 

 *2. Roll Call 
 

Ms. O’Neill 

Public 
Comment 

*3. Public Comment (limited to three (3)  minutes per person) 
 

Mr. Smith 

 4. Approval/Deletions to Agenda for the May 23, 2013 Meeting 
 

Mr. Smith 

 5. Approval/Additions/Deletions to the Minutes of the  March 7, 
2013 Special Budget Meeting and March 28, 2013 Regular 
Meeting 
 

Mr. Smith 

 
 
 
 
 
 

*6. Recognitions 
A. Introduction of new employee(s) - Sara McConnell-Dinga, 

Public Health Emergency Response Coordinator 
B. Promotions – None 
C. Years of Service Recognitions – None 
D. Retirements – None 

 

Mr. Smith and Mr. 
Dick 
 
 
 
 
 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
1001 East Ninth Street / P.O. Box 11130 

Reno, Nevada  89520 
Telephone   775.328-2400 • Fax   775.328.2279 

www.washoecounty.us/health 

GEORGE HESS, MD 
DENIS HUMPHREYS, OD 

JULIA RATTI 
 

KEVIN DICK 
Interim District Health Officer 

 
LESLIE ADMIRAND 
Deputy District Attorney 

 
 
 

MATT SMITH, Chairman 
KITTY JUNG, Vice Chairman 

GEORGE FURMAN, MD 
SHARON ZADRA 

 

 

  
Page 1  

  



Time 
Agenda 

Item 
No. 

Agenda Item Presenter 

E. Recognition - Candy Hunter - Lifetime Achievement Award at 
the 14th Annual Nurse of Achievement Awards.  

 
 7. Proclamations – None Mr. Smith and Mr. 

Dick 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Consent Agenda:  Matters which the District Board of Health 
may consider in one motion.  Any exceptions to the Consent 
Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 
 
A. Air Quality Management Cases: 
 

1. Recommendation to Uphold Unappealed Citations to the 
Air Pollution Control Hearing Board: 
 
a. Spanish Springs Construction – Case No. 1115, 

NOV 5267, 2399 Valley Road, Reno, NV 
 

b. Spanish Springs Construction, Case No. 1117, 
NOV 5266, 2399 Valley Road, Reno, NV 
 

c. Eagle Crest Construction – Case 1118, NOV 5268, 
11420 South Virginia Street, Reno, NV  

 
2. Recommendation of Cases Appealed to the Air Pollution 

Control Hearing Board.   None 
 

3. Recommendation for Variance:   None  
 

B. Sewage, Wastewater & Sanitation Cases:   Recommendation 
to Approve Variance Case(s) Presented to the Sewage, 
Wastewater & Sanitation Hearing Board.  None. 
 

C. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements: 
 

1. Approval of Amendment #1 to the Interlocal Contract 
with the State of Nevada, Department of Motor Vehicles, 
for the DMV Excess Reserve Grant Program (IO 11001) 
to extend the contract period through June 30, 2014.  

 
D. Presentation and possible acceptance of the Washoe 

County Health District 2013 Legislative Session Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Albee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Cooke 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Dick 
 
 

 9. 
 
 
 

Air Pollution Control Hearing Board Cases appealed to the 
District Board of Health.   None. 

Ms. Albee 

 10. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority:  
    
A. Review and Acceptance of the Operations and Financial 

Reports for April, 2013; and 
 

 
 
Mr. Gubbels 

  
Page 2  

  



Time 
Agenda 

Item 
No. 

Agenda Item Presenter 

B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities Since April, 2013 
 

 11. Presentation and Possible Approval of the Franchise Compliance 
Report for the Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 
(REMSA) 7/1/11 through 6/30/12 
 

Ms. Akurosawa 

 12. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Direction to Staff regarding 
Emergency Medical Services (“EMS”), Including 
Recommendations Contained in the TriData Report and Various 
Other EMS Studies 
  

Dr. Todd 

 13. PUBLIC HEARING:  Proposed Approval and Adoption of the 
Well Construction Regulations, as amended. 
 

Mr. Rubio 

 14. PUBLIC HEARING:  Proposed Approval and Adoption of the 
Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Regulations, as amended. 
 

Mr. Boland 

 15. Review and Acceptance of the Monthly Public Health Fund 
Revenue and Expenditure Report for April, 2013 
 

Ms. Stickney 

 16. Consideration of contracting with an appropriate national 
organization for a public health fundamental review of the Washoe 
County Health District, with a proposed budget of $80,000 
 

Mr. Smith and Mr. 
Dick 
 

 *17. Staff Reports and Program Updates 
 
A. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness  - 

Communicable Disease; Public Health Preparedness; 
Emergency Medical Services; RWJF Shared Services Learning 
Community Grant; and Vital Statistics 

 

 
 
Dr. Todd 

  B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services – 
Clinical Programs and Non-Communicable Disease Updates  
 

Mr. Kutz 

  C. Director, Environmental Health Services  
Food Program; Land Development; Solid Waste/Special 
Events; and Vector-Borne Disease Program 

   

Mr. Sack 

  D. Acting Director, Air Quality Management – Air Quality; 
Planning and Monitoring Activity; Permitting Activity; 
Compliance & Inspection Activity; and Permitting & 
Enforcement Activity  
 

Mr. Inouye 
 
 

  E. Administrative Health Services Officer – AHSO agenda 
items are included in other agenda items. 
 

Ms. Stickney 

  F. Interim District Health Officer – 2013 Legislative Session; 
Budget; Human Resources; Communication; Accreditation; 
Washoe County and Community Activities; Health District 
Media Contacts and Outreach; Statewide (and Beyond) 
Organizational Efforts; RWJF Shared Services Learning 
Community Grant Update; and District Board of Health 
Information and Resources 

Mr. Dick 

  
Page 3  

  



Time 
Agenda 

Item 
No. 

Agenda Item Presenter 

Board  
Comment 

*18. Limited to Announcements or Issues for Future Agendas Mr. Smith 

 19. Emergency Items 
 

Mr. Dick 

Public 
Comment 

*20. Public Comment (limited to three (3) minutes per person).  No 
action may be taken. 
 

Mr. Smith 

 
 

21. Adjournment Mr. Smith 

 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Business Impact Statement:  A Business Impact Statement is available at the Washoe County Health District for those items 
denoted with a “$.” 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of 
another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time 
designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are 
voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public who require special 
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe 
County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Time Limits:  Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters whether listed on the agenda or 
not.  All comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Additionally, public comment of three (3) minutes per person 
may be heard during individual action items on the agenda.  Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda 
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting.  Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Response to Public Comments: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV   
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

  
Page 4  

  

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
























































































































































































2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

ACR 2   Encourages board of county 
commissioners to make available 
programs for single-stream recycling. 
(BDR R-119) 
 

 • Priority:  
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify:  
• Position: Support 
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact:  
 
Rec’d Req for Eval on 3/18; 
emailed to Bob and Joe on 
3/18 

 
ACR 3   Expresses support for the programs, 

partnerships, and recycling efforts of 
the America’s Schools Program. 
(BDR R-122) 
 

This is a bill we would support but not put any 
effort into unless we had to. 
 

• Priority:  
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify:  
• Position: Support 
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact:  
 
Rec’d Req for Eval on 3/18; 
emailed to Bob and Joe on 
3/18 
Hearing on 3/26/2013 @ 
12:30 pm; Hearing on 4/2 @ 
12:30 pm 
 

BDR 710 
 

  Makes various changes concerning 
health care facilities that employ 
nurses.  (BDR 40-710) 
 

 • Priority:  
• Action:  
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: No 

Impact 
• Rec’d Fiscal Note req; 

emailed to Steve, 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 1 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

Candy, and Stacy on 
3/19; due 3/22; 
submitted 3/19 
 

BDR 743   Revises provisions governing victims 
of crime. (BDR 16-743) 

 • Priority:  
• Action:  
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: No Fiscal 

Impact 
 
• Rec’d Req for Fiscal 

Note; emailed to Steve, 
Candy, and Stacy on 
3/18; due 3/20; returned 
3/19 

 
BDR 40-964 
 

  Revises provisions relating to the 
emissions testing of certain consigned 
vehicles. 
 

 • Priority: High 
• Action: Track 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
 
Request to support from Dan 
Musgrove on 2/26 – 
forwarded to Joe, Kevin, and 
Dan on 2/26 – Kevin 
responded to Dan on 2/27 
that the Health District is not 
opposed to the language. 
 
 

 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 2 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

BDR 52-
1024 
 

  Prohibits certain fees relating to credit 
card transactions. (BDR 52-1024) 

Fiscal Impact:  FY 12-13 - $9,794; FY13-14 - 
$9,794; FY14-15 - $9,794; Future Biennia - 
$19,588.  The Health District does not apply a 
surcharge or convenience fee to any purpose 
transaction made by credit or debit card.  All 
bank fees are absorbed by the Health Fund. 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Comment 

Only 
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
 
Rec’d Fiscal Note Request 
on 3/11;  Patsy to respond; 
responded on 3/13 
 

AB 3 Judiciary Fail 4/12/13 
Deadline; no 
further action 
allowed. 

Revises provisions governing the 
enforcement of the tax on live 
entertainment.  (BDR 41-326) 
 

 • Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Comment 

Only 
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact:  

 
AB 4 Government 

Affairs 
Fail 4/12/13 
Deadline; no 
further action 
allowed. 

Revises certain provisions governing 
public records and legal notices. 
(BDR 19-259) 
 

 • Priority: High 
• Action: Track 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 3 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

AB 28 Not stated Work Session 
Senate 
Committee on 
HHS – 
4/25/2013 3:30 
 

Revises the definition of “sentinel” 
event for the purpose of provisions 
relating to the health and safety of 
patients at certain medical facilities.  
(BDR 10-311). 
 

 • Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Support 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact: No 
(R. Todd) 
Legislative Alert on 1/20; 
Dr. Todd made comments; 
entered on 1/23/13 
 

AB 31 Government 
Affairs 

In committee Revises various provisions relating to 
public records.  (BDR 19-211) 
 

 • Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position:  
• Ordinance:   
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 

 
AB 44 Judiciary Pending Requires associations of planned 

communities to allow the outdoor 
storage of trash and recycling 
containers under certain 
circumstances.  (BDR 10-262) 

 • Priority:  
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
 
Hearing on 4/10 @ 8:00 am; 
notified Bob 
 
Rec’d Req for Eval on 
Amendment on 4/16; 
forwarded to Bob on 4/18 
 
 

 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 4 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

AB 65 Government 
Affairs 

In Committee; 
Amend, and Do 
Pass as 
Amended; 
Forwarded to 
Senate on 4/16 

Revises various provisions related to 
open meetings.  (BDR 19-603) 
 

The Open Meeting Law requires that meetings 
of public bodies be open to the public, with 
limited exceptions set forth specifically in 
statute. (NRS 241.020) Section 2 of this bill 
compiles a list of provisions relating to the 
applicability of and exceptions and exemptions 
to the Open Meeting Law currently in existing 
law. Sections 6 and 8 of this bill make 
conforming changes. Section 2 also adds an 
exemption to the Open Meeting Law for 
meetings of a committee or subcommittee of a 
public body when the committee or 
subcommittee is engaged solely in activities 
relating to the acquisition of facts for the public 
body. Section 3 of this bill prohibits a member 
of a public body from designating a person to 
attend a meeting of the public body in the place 
of the member unless members of the public 
body are expressly authorized to do so by the 
constitutional provision, statute, ordinance, 
resolution or other legal authority that created 
the public body. Section 3 also requires that any 
such designation be made in writing, deems any 
person so designated to be a member of the 
public body for purposes of determining a 
quorum at the meeting and entitles such a 
person to exercise the same powers as the 
regular members of the public body at the 
meeting. Any action taken by a public body in 
violation of the Open Meeting Law is void. 
(NRS 241.036) Under existing law, the 
Attorney General is required to investigate and 
prosecute any violation of the Open Meeting 
Law. (NRS 241.039) Existing law authorizes 
the Attorney General or a member of the public 
to sue a public body: (1) within 60 days after an 
alleged violation to have an action by the public 
body declared void; or (2) within 120 days after 

• Priority:  High 
• Action:  Tracking 
• Testify:  
• Position: Support 
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: No  

Fiscal Impact 
 
Hearing:  3/13 @ 9:00 AM 
Hearing: 3/29 @ 10:00 AM 
 
• Req for Eva on revisions 
received on 4/12; emailed 
to DDs on 4/12 

 
• Eileen made comments; if 
corrective action is taken 
within 30 days of alleged 
violation, AG may decide 
not to commence with 
prosecution.  If any 
member of the public body 
is present by means of 
electronic communication, 
the public body shall 
ensure that the public can 
hear or observe and 
participate. 

 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 5 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

an alleged violation to require the public body 
to comply with the Open Meeting Law. (NRS 
241.037) Section 4 of this bill provides that if a 
public body takes certain corrective action 
within 30 days after an alleged violation, the 
Attorney General may decide not to commence 
prosecution of the alleged violation if the 
Attorney General determines that foregoing 
prosecution would be in the best interests of the 
public. Section 4 also extends by 30 days the 
deadline by which lawsuits to enforce the Open 
Meeting Law may be filed by the Attorney 
General in the context of corrective action. 
Section 4 further provides that any action taken 
by a public body to correct an alleged violation 
of the Open Meeting Law is effective 
prospectively only. With certain exceptions, a 
public body is required to comply with the Open 
Meeting Law when a quorum of its members is 
present to deliberate toward a decision or take 
action on a matter over which the public body 
has supervision, control, jurisdiction or advisory 
power. (NRS 241.015) Section 6 of this bill 
defines “deliberate” for purposes of this 
requirement to mean examining, weighing and 
reflecting on the reasons for or against an action 
and includes collective discussion and the 
collective acquisition or the exchange of facts 
preliminary to the ultimate decision. Section 6 
also clarifies that a quorum of members may be 
present in person or by means of electronic 
communication. Under the Open Meeting Law, 
a public body is required, upon request and at 
no charge, to provide a copy of an agenda for 
the meeting, any proposed ordinance or 
regulation to be discussed at the meeting, and 
other supporting material, with certain 
exceptions, provided to members of the public 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 6 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

body for an item on the agenda. (NRS 241.020) 
Section 7 of this bill requires that a public body 
include on the notice for a meeting: (1) the 
name and contact information for the person 
designated by the public body from whom a 
member of the public may request the 
supporting material for a meeting; and (2) a list 
of the locations where the supporting material is 
available to the public. Section 7 also requires 
the governing body of a city or county whose 
population is 40,000 or more (currently Clark, 
Douglas, Elko, Lyon, Nye and Washoe Counties 
and the cities of Carson City, Henderson, Las 
Vegas, North Las Vegas, Reno and Sparks) to 
post the supporting material to its website not 
later than the time at which the material is 
provided to the members of the public body. 
Section 7 also authorizes such a public body to 
provide the supporting material via a link to the 
posting on its website to a person who has 
requested to receive the material by electronic 
mail if the person so agrees.  

AB 69 Assemblyman 
Elliot Anderson; 
Senator Ruben 
Kihuen 

Passed as 
amended; 
referred to the 
Senate 
Committee on 
HHS 

Requires a crematory for human 
remains to be located in a certain area.  
(BDR 40-25) 
 

 • Position:  Tracking 
 
Legislative Alert on 1/18; 
Kevin said we are neutral;  
entered “No Interest” on 
1/23/13 
 

AB 109 Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman 
David Bobzien 
Assemblyman 
Elliot Anderson 
Assemblywoman 
Marilyn 
Kirkpatrick 

Pending Revises the qualifications and training 
required for certain persons who 
operate or are employed by a child 
care facility.   
 

This bill covers requirements outside of our 
jurisdiction.  We have no issues either way. 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Comment 

Only 
• Ordinance: Uncertain 
• Policy: Uncertain 
• Fiscal Impact:  

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 7 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

Assemblyman 
Andy Eisen 
Senator Moises 
Denis 
Senator Debbie 
Smith 
Co-Sponsor(s): 
Assemblywoman 
Olivia Diaz 
 

• Rec’d Request for 
Comments on 2/14; 
forwarded to Bob and 
Joe on 2/14; 

• rec’d Bob’s Comments 
2/20; Input on 2/20 
 
 

AB 122 
 

Assemblyman 
Munford 

Pursuant to 
Joint Standing 
Rule No. 
14.3.1, no 
further action 
allowed 

Imposes a fee on sales by fast-food 
businesses of certain items of 
prepared food. 
 

 • Priority:  
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 

 
 

AB 126 
 

Assemblywoman 
Lucy Flores 
Co-Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman 
Paul Aizley 
Assemblyman 
David Bobzien 
Assemblyman 
Andy Eisen 
Assemblyman 
James Healey 
Senator Justin 
Jones 
Senator Joyce 
Woodhouse 
 

Amended; sent 
to printer 

Requires the disclosure of certain 
nutritional information in certain 
chain restaurants. 
 
Bill requires food facilities that are a 
chain of 10 or more nationally to post 
certain nutritional facts for food 
served or sold in their facility.  They 
would have to follow the same federal 
requirements that chains of 20 or 
more would have to follow.  In 
addition it requires Health 
jurisdictions to enforce the federal 
requirements on all facilities that are 
chains greater than 10 nationally. 
 

Under federal law, a restaurant or similar retail 
food establishment that: (1) is part of a chain 
with 20 or more locations doing business under 
the same name and offering for sale 
substantially the same menu items; or (2) elects 
to be subject to the disclosure requirements, is 
required to disclose certain nutritional 
information about the menu items offered for 
sale by the restaurant or establishment. (21 
U.S.C. §343(q)(5)(H)) Section 1 of this bill 
requires the owner or operator of any restaurant 
or similar retail food establishment that is part 
of a chain with 10 or more locations doing 
business within this State to disclose the same 
nutritional information that federal law requires 
a chain with 20 or more locations to disclose.  
 
Section 2 of this bill provides a penalty for the 
owner or operator of any restaurant or similar 

• Priority: High 
• Action: Track 
• Testify: Yes (Sack, 

Iser, McNinch, 
Macaluso) 

• Position: Comment 
Only – CCHS 
Supports 

• Ordinance:  Uncertain 
• Policy: Yes 
• Fiscal Impact: Yes 
(B. Sack) 
 
• Legislative Alert on 

2/15;  Forwarded to Bob 
and Joe; comments 
input 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 8 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

retail food establishment who fails to make the 
required disclosure of nutritional information.  
 
It is very difficult to determine the full impacts 
of this bill on our agency because the federal 
regulations that we would have to enforce are 
not in a finalized form yet.  We are estimating it 
will take one to two additional 
Environmentalists to implement and enforce this 
law on an ongoing basis.  It will increase 
inspection times and create a new area of 
complaints that we will have to investigate. 
 
We estimate that we will have to add two 
additional Environmentalists at a cost of 
~$200,000 in order to enforce the proposed law.  
This bill gives us oversight of nutritional 
labeling in chain facilities that are regulated 
under Federal Law and also apply Federal Law 
to a group of facilities that are not regulated 
under Federal Law.   
 

• Hearing on AB 126 on 
3/6/2013 @ 1:30 PM, 
Rm 3138 
 
Hearing on 4/10 at 1:30 
PM 
 

• Rec’d Req for Eval as 
Amended on 4/16; 
emailed to Bob on 4/18 

AB 137 
 

Assembly 
Committee on 
Education 

Failed to meet 
4/12 deadline; 
no further 
action allowed. 
 
 
(Vetoed by 
Governor in 
2011 after 
session ended) 

Revises provisions governing 
programs of nutrition in public 
schools (BDR 34-191). 

Analysis. This bill would require all NV school 
districts to provide breakfast in the schools in 
accordance with Provision 2 set forth in 7 
C.F.R. 245.9 (lower income schools). 
Research shows that a healthy breakfast for 
children can improve test scores, school 
attendance, diet quality, and overall health1. 
According to Geri Casey, Assistant Director at 
ARAMARK, the Nutrition Services Provider 
for WCSD, and this bill would not change 
current practice for WCSD. There are currently 
20 WCSD schools that participate in the 
breakfast program. All that are currently eligible 
participate. The Department of Education 
conducts audits and reports are provided in 
compliance with the timelines proposed in this 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Support 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact: No 
(E. Dixon) 
 
Legislative Alert on 2/5; 
Erin made comments; 
entered on 2/5/13 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 9 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

bill. The location of where breakfast is served is 
also in compliance with this bill.  Therefore, this 
bill would not impact the health of Washoe 
County children. 
History: This bill was passed by the legislature 
in 2011 and vetoed by the Governor after the 
conclusion of the session. Upon reviewing the 
committee minutes from 2011 both WCSD and 
CCSD were in support of the final language of 
this bill.  
 
1American Association of School 
Administrators. 
 

AB 139 
 

Assemblyman 
Skip Daly 

Exempted – 
Referred to 
Committee on 
Ways and 
Means 

Revises provisions relating to the state 
business portal (BDR 7-127) 
 

Requires Health District to utilize State Portal 
business license information in permitting, to 
provide online permitting, and integrate with the 
State Portal by 01/01/14. 
 
Remove mandate.  Make the goal the use of 
online permitting and integration with the State 
Portal.  Integrate State permits prior to local 
mandate. 
 
The Washoe County Health District does not 
currently have the capacity for online 
permitting.  The January 1, 2014 effective date 
for online permitting and integration with the 
State portal is not feasible.  It is not clear how 
“integration” with the portal is defined.  The 
Health District does not have sufficient 
information on the portal to know whether such 
integration is feasible with online permitting 
software application which might be used for 
online permitting by the Health District.  
Utilization of business information from the 
State portal may require modification of 
permitting software currently utilized by the 

• Priority: High 
• Action: Track 
• Testify: Yes (Sack, 

Dick, or Iser) 
• Position:  Support if 

Amended 
• Ordinance: Unknown 
• Policy:  Yes 
• Fiscal Impact:  Yes 
 
• County requested Fiscal 

Note on 2/14; deadline 
2/20; forwarded to DDs 
on 2/14; cancelled on 
2/15 and then re 
requested with a new 
due date of 2/22/2013. 

• Request for Evaluation 
2/19/2013; forwarded to 
Bob; Kevin; and Paula 
on 2/19 @ 10:50 am 

• Rec’d and input 
comments on 2/20 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 10 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

HD.  This software is no longer being actively 
supported and would divert the health district 
from efforts to provide online permitting 
capabilities. 
 
The ability to integrate with the State Portal by 
State agencies that perform permitting activities 
similar to the Health District has not yet been 
demonstrated.  The bill should be amended to 
remove a mandated deadline for integration 
with the State Portal or utilization of portal 
business license information.  This might be 
established as a goal but no mandate should be 
established for local health districts until the 
State has demonstrated the capability to perform 
this function with their agencies that perform 
similar functions. 
 
Amend to remove mandated deadline.  Establish 
a goal of local agency and health district 
utilization of state portal business license 
information and of online permitting and 
integration with the State Portal.  Achieve 
similar State agency permitting integration prior 
to health district mandate. 
 
FY 12/13 - $800,000; FY 13/14 - $1.041 
Million; FY 14/15 - $240,200; Future Biennia 
- $240,200 
 
Fiscal Note:  Washoe County Health District 
does not currently have the capability to provide 
on-line access and submission of its business 
license applications.  Washoe County has 
released an RFP for a vendor to supply internet 
capable software, and the acquisition and 
maintenance costs reflect the top end bid 
proposal.  Printing costs reflect the 

• Hearing scheduled for 
8:00 am on 2/21 room 
3143; emailed Bob, 
Kevin, Joe, and Paula 

 
• Hearing scheduled – 

3/29 @ 10 AM 
 
• Req for Eval on 

revisions on 4/12; 
forwarded to Kevin and 
Bob on 4/12 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 11 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

modifications to and printing of new permit 
applications to include the State business 
identification number.  There are no cost 
estimates for the new software system to 
integrate the County’s application with the State 
business portal or to use the state business portal 
to collect common business registration 
information and to retrieve that information into 
the County’s database.  There are also no cost 
estimates for integrating the State business 
identification number in the existing Health 
District permitting software which is no longer 
actively supported as the new software system is 
pursued. 
 

AB 150 Daly, Kirkpatrick, 
Bobzien, Benitez-
Thompson, 
Bustamante 
Adams, Carlton, 
Healey, 
Ohrenschall, 
Pierce, Sprinkle, 
Smith 

Pending – In 
Committee 

Provides for the legislative review of 
governmental agencies to promote 
governmental oversight and 
accountability. 

 • Priority:  
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
 
Rec’d Req for Eval on 2/21; 
forwarded to DDs 2/21;  
Rec’ d Req for Eval on 
amendment on 4/22; 
forwarded to Eileen on 
4/22/13 
 
 

AB 154 
 

Eisen, Frierson, 
Benitez-
Thompson, 
Carrillo, Dondero 
Loop, Flores, 
Healey, Jones, 
Hardy 

Passed as 
Amended; In 
Senate 
Committee on 
HHS 

Revises provisions concerning child 
death review teams. (BDR 38-611) 
 
Currently two oversight committees at 
the state level review the findings of 
child death reviews of children 0-18 
years of age conducted by local teams 

Simply an efficiency at the state oversight level 
for child death review teams – a good idea. 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: Yes (Candy 

Hunter) 
• Position: Support As Is  
• Ordinance:  Uncertain 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 12 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

 in Nevada. The administrative team 
reviews reports and recommendations, 
while the Executive Committee and 
the director or authorized 
representative of an agency which 
provides child welfare services are 
authorized to appoint the 
multidisciplinary teams. The bill 
names participants of the 
administrative team as administrators 
of agencies providing child welfare 
services, and responsible for vital 
statistics, public health, mental health 
and public safety. 
 

• Policy:  At the State 
level 

• Fiscal Impact: 
Rec’d Req for Eval on 2/21; 
forwarded to DDs 2/21 
 
Hearing set for 3/13 @ 1:30 
pm; notified Steve and 
Candy 
 
Hearing set for 4/25/2013; 
notified Steve and Candy on 
4/25/13 
 
Rec’d Req for Eval on 
amendment; forwarded to 
Steve and Candy 
 

AB 155 Eisen, Frierson, 
Benitez-
Thompson, 
Carrillo, Dondero 
Loop, Duncan, 
Flores, Healey, 
Kirkpatrick, 
Oscarson, Jones, 
Hardy 

Passed as 
Amended; In 
Senate 
Committee on 
HHS 

Revises provisions governing reports 
of the abuse or neglect of a child 
(BDR 38-610). 
 
AB155 revises provisions related to 
reporting child abuse or neglect by 
changing the manner in which they 
are specified in law, and requiring 
notification of those persons of their 
duty as mandated reporters. Those 
persons will also be required to 
provide written acknowledgement of 
the information received. A licensing 
board or employers (when no 
licensure, certification or endorsement 
in Nevada is required) will be 
responsible for informing the person 
and maintaining a copy of the 
acknowledgement or record. The 
Legislative Committee on Health Care 

Change statute regarding provisions of reporting 
child abuse and neglect, requires licensing 
boards and/or employers to inform persons of 
mandatory reporting requirement, receive 
written acknowledge from employee and 
maintain records, adds volunteer fire 
departments to Safe Haven Law as provider of 
emergency services. 
 
AB 155 seeks increased awareness and 
responsibility for reporting suspected child 
abuse and neglect by persons who may identify 
children who are victims in their work. By 
placing additional requirements on licensing 
boards and employers for staff in “medical 
facilities,” the bill would ensure training and 
acknowledgement of this responsibility. It 
further allows children to prevent reporting by 
attorneys who represent them and allows 
volunteer fire departments to accept infants no 

• Priority:  High 
• Action:  Track 
• Testify: Yes (Candy 

Hunter) 
• Position:  Support 
• Ordinance: Uncertain 
• Policy: Yes 
• Fiscal Impact: 
 
Candy said will impact 
Health District, but is 
necessary. 

 
The impact to the County (at 
a minimum the Health 
District, Washoe County 
Social Services) will be the 
requirement to comply with 
the licensing body's policy, 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 13 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

reviews any future NRS chapters 
requiring licenses, permits or 
certificates to persons providing 
health care to determine if inclusion 
as a mandated reporter is necessary 
under Chapter 432B.  
Additional provisions include an 
exception from reporting for attorneys 
if they acquired knowledge of abuse 
or neglect from a client who is the 
victim and who is in foster care unless 
the child agrees to the report. 
Additional sanctions are written for 
subsequent violations to be punishable 
as a gross misdemeanor. Finally, the 
“Safe Haven Law” allowing infants 
not more than 30 days old to be 
voluntarily left with a provider of 
emergency services expands the 
definition to include a volunteer fire 
department and any ambulance 
service holding a permit issued in 
Nevada. 
 
 

greater than 30 days of life from parent who 
voluntarily relinquish them to a “Safe Haven.” 
 
The Health District does not appear to fall under 
the definition of a medical facility although it’s 
not clear if the bill includes all medical facilities 
(see proposed language below), or only those 
listed in NRS449.0151 “Medical facility” 
defined:  
 
NRS 449.0151  “Medical facility” defined.  
“Medical facility” includes: 
     1.  A surgical center for ambulatory 
patients; 
     2.  An obstetric center; 
      3.  An independent center for emergency 
medical care; 
     4.  An agency to provide nursing in the 
home; 
      5.  A facility for intermediate care; 
      6.  A facility for skilled nursing; 
      7.  A facility for hospice care; 
     8.  A hospital; 
     9.  A psychiatric hospital; 
     10.  A facility for the treatment of 
irreversible renal disease; 
     11.  A rural clinic;  
     12.  A nursing pool; 
     13.  A facility for modified medical 
detoxification; 
     14.  A facility for refractive surgery; 
     15.  A mobile unit; and 
     16.  A community triage center. 
 
Proposed Text:  
 
18 (b) Any personnel of a [hospital or similar 
institution] medical 

ensuring that the Board of 
Medical Examiners and 
Nevada State Board of 
Nursing conducted the 
information sharing and 
acknowledgement. 
 
Additionally, for non 
licensed, certified or 
endorsed personnel 
providing care to children, 
the Washoe County Human 
Resources Representatives in 
affected departments would 
be required to inform 
employees of their duty, 
obtain a written 
acknowledgement of the 
information, and maintain 
copies. Training would be 
required, with an anticipated 
length of 1-2 hours to 
provide an adequate 
curriculum. 
 
 
Hearing on 3/13/13 @ 1:30 
PM; notified Candy and 
Steve 
 
Hearing on 4/1 @ 12:30 pm 
 
Hearing on 4/25/13 @ 3:30 
pm; notified Steve and 
Candy 
 
Hearing on 5/14/13 @ 3:30 
pm; notified Steve, Candy, 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 14 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

19 facility licensed pursuant to chapter 449 of 
NRS who are engaged 
20 in the admission, examination, care or 
treatment of persons or an 
21 administrator, manager or other person in 
charge of [a hospital or 
22 similar institution] such a medical facility 
upon notification of 
23 suspected abuse or neglect of a child by a 
member of the staff of the 
24 [hospital.] medical facility. 
 
Although local health districts, social services 
agencies, juvenile detention, law enforcement, 
etc. are not specified in Chapter 449 as a 
“medical facility,” many Washoe County 
employees fall within the purview of this law as 
a mandated reporter as in (f) and (J) below:  
(f) Any person who maintains or is employed by 
a facility or 33 establishment that provides care 
for children, children’s camp or 34 other public 
or private facility, institution or agency 
furnishing care 
35 to a child. 
1 (j) Any person who maintains, is employed by 
or serves as a 
2 volunteer for an agency or service which 
advises persons regarding 
3 abuse or neglect of a child and refers them to 
persons and agencies 
4 where their requests and needs can be met. 
 

and Kevin 
 

AB 157 Wheeler, 
Kirkpatrick, 
Ellison, Fiore, 
Martin, Oscarson, 
Woodbury, 
Goicoechea, 

Failed to meet 
4/12 deadline; 
no further 
action allowed. 
 

Revises provisions relating to water 
furnished by a municipal water 
system for domestic use in certain 
counties. 
 

This bill has some things that we would be 
concerned with if it applied to our jurisdiction 
but it specifically excludes Clark and Washoe 
County, so we do not have any comment 
 

• Priority:  
• Action: Monitor Only 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 15 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

Gustavson, 
Settelmeyer 
 

• Fiscal Impact: 
• Rec’d Request for Eval 

– Forwarded to Bob on 
2/27; Bob responded 
and input on 3/1 
 

AB 158 
 

Assemblywoman 
Olivia Diaz 
 

Passed as 
Amended; In 
Senate 
Committee on 
HHS 

Revises provisions governing the 
Advisory Council on the Sate 
Program for Fitness and Wellness. 
(BDR 40-455) 
 

 • Priority:  
• Action: No Interest 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
• Rec’d Request for Eval 

– Forwarded to Steve; 
Steve said no need to 
track 
 

AB 166 Assembly 
Committee on 
Transportation 
 

Eligible for 
Exemption 
from 4/12 
Deadline -  

Revises requirements for the 
registration of a vehicle that is driven 
in Nevada by a nonresident who 
works in Nevada.  (BDR 43-707). 
 
Requiring vehicles to meet emissions 
control requirements based on 
location of employment vs. residence 
is supported. 
 
Amendment changes wording to 
“commute to work on a regular basis” 
in Nevada. Previously adopted 
amendment reduced NV vehicle 
registration fee to $33.  This 
amendment limits applicability to 
those commuting 30 road miles or less 
from the border and thus weakens the 
bill. (looks like a mining amendment) 

Evaluation:  The Bill would require 
nonresidents who employed in the state and 
operate a motor vehicle on State highways to 
register the vehicle in Nevada ($150/yr.) and 
requires proof the vehicle has been tested for 
emissions in the state of residence or else 
requires the vehicle to comply with NV 
emissions testing law.  The improvement of air 
emissions control achieved by this legislation is 
expected to be small.  However, the bill sets a 
positive precedent of requiring emissions testing 
based on location of employment.  This would 
provide a precedent for possible future testing of 
vehicles of people that are employed in Washoe 
County and reside in other Nevada counties. 
 
Amendment - The Bill would require 
nonresidents who commute to work within 30 
road miles of the State border to register the 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Support As Is 
• Ordinance:  No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact: 

 
• Rec’d Request for Eval 

– Forwarded to DDs on 
2/26/13; Kevin 
responded on 3/5; input 
on 3/6 
 
Hearing on 3/14 at 3:15 
pm; Hearing on 4/9 @ 
12:00 AM(?) 
 
Hearing on 4/11 @ 3:15 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 16 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

 vehicle in Nevada ($33/yr.) and requires proof 
the vehicle has been tested for emissions in the 
state of residence or else requires the vehicle to 
comply with NV emissions testing law.  
Amendment 317 weakens the bill by limiting 
applicability to those commuting no more the 30 
road miles from the State border.  Those 
commuting farther would be expected to emit 
more pollutants and would also be creating 
emissions within the area 30 road miles from 
the border   The improvement of air emissions 
control achieved by this legislation is expected 
to be small.  However, the bill sets a positive 
precedent of requiring emissions testing based 
on commuting to work.  This would provide a 
precedent for possible future testing of vehicles 
of people that are employed in Washoe County 
and reside in other Nevada counties. 
 

pm; notified Kevin on 
4/11 @ 9:00 am 
 
 
 
 

AB 167 Assembly 
Committee on 
Transportation 

Eligible for 
Exemption 
from 4/12 
Deadline - 

Revises requirements for the 
registration of certain vehicles  
 
Requiring vehicles owned by 
nonresidents to meet emissions 
control requirements if used in 
Nevada for the business of the owner. 
 
Amendment changes registration fee 
for vehicles used for business in 
Nevada by non-resident business 
owners to $250 for first vehicle, $150 
for each additional, and exempts 
rented and short term leased vehicles.  
Emissions testing still required. 
 

Evaluation:  The Bill would require nonresident 
owners of vehicles that are used for business 
purposes in Nevada to   register the vehicle in 
Nevada (at fixed cost) and requires proof the 
vehicle has been tested for emissions in the state 
of residence of the owner or  else requires the 
vehicle to comply with NV emissions testing 
law.  The improvement of air emissions control 
achieved by this legislation is expected to be 
small.  However, the bill sets a positive 
precedent of requiring emissions testing based 
on location of vehicle use.  This would provide 
a precedent for possible future testing of 
vehicles of owners that are not residents of 
Washoe County but are used for business 
purposes in Washoe County. 
  
Amendment - The Bill would require 
nonresident owners of vehicles that are used for 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Support As Is 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact: 

Rec’d Request for Eval 
– Forwarded to DDs on 
2/26/13; Kevin 
responded on 3/6; input 
on 3/7; Hearing on 3/14 
@ 3:15 pm; Hearing on 
4/11 @ 3:15; notified 
Kevin on 3/11 @ 9 am 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 17 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

business purposes in Nevada to   register the 
vehicle in Nevada ($200 for the first vehicle and 
$150 for each additional) and requires proof the 
vehicle has been tested for emissions in the state 
of residence of the owner or else requires the 
vehicle to comply with NV emissions testing 
law.  The amendment exempts vehicles leased 
or rented by a short term lessor. The 
improvement of air emissions control achieved 
by this legislation is expected to be small.  
However, the bill sets a positive precedent of 
requiring emissions testing based on location of 
vehicle use.  This would provide a precedent for 
possible future testing of vehicles of owners that 
are not residents of Washoe County but are used 
for business purposes in Washoe County. 
 
 

AB 168 
 

Assemblywoman 
Maggie Carlton 

Amended; 
Ready for 
Second 
Reading 

Requires the membership of each 
county advisory board to manage 
wildlife to include one qualified 
member who represents the interests 
of the general public. 
 

 • Priority:  
• Action: No Interest 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 

 
Rec’d Request for Eval 
– Forwarded to DDs on 
2/26/13; Bob replied 
2/27 
 
 

 
AB 176 Primary 

Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman 
Richard Carrillo 
Assemblyman 

Read second 
time. Amended 

Revises provisions relating to the 
emissions testing of certain consigned 
vehicles. (BDR 40-964) 
 
Removes requirement for emissions 

Evaluation:  Bill relieves vehicle consignment 
auctioneers, for live auctions with auctioneers 
verbally calling for and accepting bids, from 
emissions testing requirements for the vehicles 
prior to sale when certain conditions are met.  

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Not Opposed; 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 18 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

Andy Eisen 
Co-Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman Ira 
Hansen 
Assemblyman 
Harvey Munford 
 

testing of vehicles prior to sale at 
consignment auctions and places 
testing requirement on buyer prior to 
registration. 
 
 

Emissions testing is required of buyer prior to 
vehicle registration. 
 
Amendment to consignment bill is to allow for 
Internet Auctions and require track record of 
auctioneers that they conduct 51% of their 
business on consignment Auctions.  Updated 
form to add Internet.  Still not opposed, Neutral. 
 

Neutral 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact: 

 
Hearing set for 
3/12/2013 at 3:15 pm. 
 
Rec’d Request for Eval 
– Forwarded to DDs on 
2/28/13; Kevin replied 
on 3/6; input on 3/7. 
 
Rec’d Req for Eval on 
Amendment on 4/16; 
forwarded to Kevin on 
4/18 
 

AB 177 
 

Assembly 
Committee on 
Transportation 
 

Failed to meet 
4/12 deadline; 
no further 
action allowed. 

 

Revises provisions governing the use 
of safety belts in taxicabs.  (BDR 43-
994) 
 

We should avoid taking a position and our 
comment could be… 
 
According to the World Health Organization 
seat belts have been credited with saving more 
than one million lives, and is widely considered 
among the most cost-effective public health 
interventions. The Washoe County Health 
District supports the use of seat belts and 
encourages all of Nevada’s residents and guests 
to use proper seatbelts when traveling in private 
vehicles or taxi cabs. 
 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Comment 

Only 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact: 

Rec’d Request for Eval 
– Forwarded to DDs on 
2/28/13 

 

AB 200 Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman 
Cresent Hardy 
Assemblyman 
Tom Grady 
Assemblywoman 

First reprint 
placed on Chief 
Clerk’s desk. 

Revises provisions relating to food 
establishments.  (BDR 40-129) 
 
Farm to Fork  
 

In negotiations. – Attending Hearings 
 
We are not in support of the bill as amended.  
We agreed to support the bill at the first hearing 
with proposed amendments that all parties 
agreed to.  New amendments were proposed 
that we are not allowed to comment on that we 

• Priority: High 
• Action:  
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 19 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

Maggie Carlton 
Assemblyman Pat 
Hickey 
Assemblyman 
James Oscarson 
Senator Joseph 
Hardy 
Co-Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman 
Randy Kirner 
Assemblyman 
Peter Livermore 
Assemblyman Jim 
Wheeler 
Senator Barbara 
Cegavske 
 

did not agree with.  The bill as it is written now 
will allow very risky food processing on farms 
with no over-site from Health Authorities.  
These products could then be sold to the public.  
The types of processes involved we would 
provide very close oversight on if they occurred 
in permitted establishments. 
 

• Fiscal Impact: 
 

Rec’d request for evaluation 
on 3/5/2013;  forwarded to 
Bob on 3/5; 
 
Hearing scheduled for 3/20 
@ 1:30 pm; Room 3138 
 
Hearing scheduled for 4/8 @ 
12:30; forwarded to Bob and 
Dr. Iser 
 
Req for Eval on Amended 
rec’d 4/15; forwarded to Bob 
on 4/16; input on 4/18 
 

AB 215 Assemblyman 
James Ohrenschall 
 

Notice of 
eligibility for 
exemption. 

Provides for the collection and 
application of graywater for a single-
family residence. (BDR 40-3) 

 

Allows for graywater sewage disposal systems 
to be installed without permits. 

May directly affect us.  We already have 
regulations in place for these and they do 
require permits, and we would not allow this in 
areas that are sewered. 
 
The bill may or may not apply to Health 
Districts, depends on interpretation.  It appears 
to allow for graywater systems anywhere, even 
those on sewer.  We look at surface application 
of sewage as an unsafe disposal method of 
sewage.  This bill allows for that even in an 
urban environment. 

• Priority: High 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: Yes (Iser, 

Sack, Tyre) 
• Position: Support if 

Amended 
• Ordinance: Uncertain 
• Policy: Uncertain 
• Fiscal Impact: 

Uncertain 
 
 

Rec’d request for eval on 3/8 
– forwarded to Bob and 
Paula 3/8; rec’d 3/19; input 
3/19 
 
Hearing 3/27 @ 1:30 – Bob 
and Dr. Iser attended 
 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 20 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

Hearing on 4/10/2013 @ 
1:30 PM 
 
Hearing on 4/12/2013 @ 
12:30; notified Bob and Dr. 
Iser 
 
Rec’d Req for Eval on 
amendment on 4/22; 
forwarded to Bob 
 

AB 255 Assemblyman 
Peter Livermore 
Assemblyman Pat 
Hickey 
Assemblyman 
John Hambrick 
 

Passed; In 
Senate 
Committee on 
HHS 

Provides for an audit concerning the 
use by the Department of Health and 
Human Services of certain 
assessments paid by counties to the 
Department.  (BDR S-191) 
 

 • Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Neutral 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: NO 
• Fiscal Impact: 

 
Rec’d request for eval on 
3/15 – forwarded to DDs on 
3/15; entered comments on 
3/18 
 

AB2 267 Assemblywoman 
Ellen Spiegel 
 

Failed to meet 
4/12 deadline; 
no further 
action allowed. 
 

Revises certain provisions governing 
publication of legal notices and legal 
advertisements.  (BDR 19-730). 
 

This change allows for Internet posting of legal 
notices vs. newspaper posting. 
 
Each legal notice costs the Health District $395; 
we normally do 6 – 8 per year. 
 
 
 

• Priority: High 
• Action: Track 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Support, If 

corrected 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: Yes 
• Fiscal Impact: Yes 

 
Rec’d request for eval on 
3/18 – forwarded to DDs on 
3/18;  Input on 3/25 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 21 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

AB 269 Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Assemblywoman 
Melissa 
Woodbury 
Senator Joseph 
Hardy 
Co-Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman 
Paul Anderson 
Assemblyman 
John Ellison 
Assemblywoman 
Michele Fiore 
Assemblyman 
John Hambrick 
Assemblyman 
Cresent Hardy 
Assemblyman 
Randy Kirner 
Assemblyman 
Peter Livermore 
Assemblyman Jim 
Wheeler 
 

Failed to meet 
4/12 deadline; 
no further 
action allowed. 
 

Requires the State Environmental 
Commission to adopt regulations 
relating to certain disposal sites for 
solid waste.  (BDR 40-773) 
 

Fiscal Impact: • Priority:  
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
• Rec’d Fiscal Note 

Request on 3/15; 
forwarded to Bob on 
3/15 

• Rec’d request for eval 
on 3/18 – forwarded to 
Bob, Paula, and Joe on  
DDs on 3/18 

 

AB 286 
 

Assemblywoman 
Lucy Flores 
 

Pending Requires the provision of emergency 
medical personnel and emergency 
medical services at the site of certain 
special events. (BDR 40-526) 

 

 • Priority:  
• Action:  
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
• Rec’d Fiscal Note 

Request 
 
 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 22 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

AB 316 
 

Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Assemblywoman 
Marilyn Dondero 
Loop 
Assemblyman 
Michael Sprinkle 
Assemblywoman 
Marilyn 
Kirkpatrick 
 

Failed. 

 

Revises provisions governing medical 
records. (BDR 40-233) 

 

Amendments do not change stance on the bill. 
 
Deferred to Ms. Admirand on this comment. 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Support As Is 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact:  
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/19; forwarded to 
Steve, Candy, and Stacy 
on 3/19 

• Rec’d Req for Eval on 
Amendment on 4/16; 
forwarded to Steve, 
Candy, and Stacy. 
 
 

AB 337 
 

Assemblywoman 
Maggie Carlton 
 

Passed; 
Referred to 
Senate 
Committee on 
Education 

Encourages public schools to establish 
and participate in programs that 
promote the consumption of fresh 
fruits and vegetables by children. 
 

AB 337 is advisory. It does not create mandates 
or requirements, but encourages schools, boards 
of trustees, superintendents, and principals to 
establish and participate in programs that 
promote the consumption of fresh fruits and 
vegetables. 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitoring 
• Testify: Yes, Seals 
• Position: Support 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact: No 
 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/19; forwarded to 
Steve, Candy, and Stacy 
on 3/19 
 
 

AB 354 
 

Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Assemblywoman 
Olivia Diaz 
Assemblyman 
David Bobzien 

Notice of 
Eligibility for 
exemption. 

Prohibits the use of certain chemicals 
in various consumer products. 

 

 • Priority:  
• Action: Monitor Only 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 23 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

Co-Sponsor(s): 
Assemblywoman 
Peggy Pierce 
Assemblywoman 
Heidi Swank 
 

• Fiscal Impact: 
 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/19; forwarded to Bob, 
Paula, and Joe 

 
 
 

 
AB 362 
 

Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman 
Lynn Stewart 
Co-Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman Pat 
Hickey 
Assemblyman 
Harvey Munford 
 

Committee on 
Ways and 
Means 
 

Provides for the establishment of the 
HIV/AIDS Drug Donation Program. 
(BDR 40-757) 

 

 • Priority:  
• Action:  
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/19; forwarded to 
Steve, Candy, and Stacy 
on 3/19 
 

AB 374 Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman 
David Bobzien 
Senator Ruben 
Kihuen 
Senator Debbie 
Smith 
Senator Tick 
Segerblom 
Senator David 
Parks 
 

Second 
reading; 
amended. 

Revises provisions relating to the 
authority of a board of county 
commissioners to regulate certain 
assemblies, events or activities. (BDR 
20-520) 

 

 • Priority:  
• Action:  
• Testify:  
• Position: No Interest  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/19; forwarded to Bob, 
Paula, and Joe – No 
Interest 

 
 
 
 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 24 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

AB 379 
 

Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Assemblyman 
John Ellison 
Co-Sponsor(s): 
Assemblywoman 
Michele Fiore 
Assemblyman 
John Hambrick 
Assemblyman Ira 
Hansen 
Assemblyman 
James Oscarson 
 

Second 
reading; 
amended. 

Revises provisions governing the 
disposal of abandoned recreational 
vehicles. (BDR 43-593) 
 

We support it but not a level that we would do 
much work on it.  Bob will go to the hearing 
and see what discussion there is. 
 
 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact:  
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/21; sent to Bob 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/19; forwarded to Bob, 
Paula, and Joe 

• Hearing on 4/2 @ 3:15 
PM; Bob will attend 

• Rec’d Req for Eval on 
Amendments on 4/16; 
forwarded to Bob on 
4/18 
 

AB 408 
 

Assemblywoman 
Dina Neal 

In Committee; 
Notice of 
eligibility for 
exemption. 

Revises provisions governing 
business impact statements prepared 
by state agencies and governing 
bodies of local governments. (BDR 
18-416) 
 

The additional requirements for making a 
concerted effort to determine the business 
impacts of a proposed rule, in addition to the 
existing requirement of requesting information 
on these potential impacts from the affected 
business community, may significantly increase 
costs of and time required for rulemaking.  This 
may require an economist to be added to staff or 
for professional services to be obtained.  Any 
regulation adopted may be subject to court 
action to declare a rule void upon determination 
that the business impact statement is inaccurate, 
incomplete or did not adequately consider or 
significantly underestimated the economic 
impact on small business.  These terms are not 
defined and ambiguous and can facilitate 
challenges of an agency action just on the basis 
of the ambiguous nature of the terms.   

• Priority: High 
• Action: Track 
• Testify: Yes; Kevin 

Dick 
• Position: Oppose 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: Yes 
• Fiscal Impact: 
 
• Requested tracking 

through Washoebills on 
3/29; emailed to DDs on 
4/2 

 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

amendment on 4/22; 
sent to Eileen and Kevin 
on 4/22 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 25 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

The bill is procedurally redundant in that federal 
and state laws already contain mechanisms 
including workshops and hearings that allow for 
public participation and commenting, should 
any individual or business perceive an undue 
financial or otherwise hardship as a result of 
regulatory enactment. The proposed bill may 
impose undue interruptions and delays in the 
regulatory implementation process. Any 
significant delays could lead to considerable 
legal ramifications including federally imposed 
sanctions.  
  
The bill may delay adoption of federal 
regulations that businesses depend on the Health 
District to implement.  Since time frames for 
attaining ambient air quality standards are 
defined in the Clean Air Act, with penalties 
including loss of federal highway funding and 
ceding of program control to the EPA, agencies 
may find that the only real practical solution is 
to propose federal minimum requirements in 
State Implementation Plans, even where more 
control is needed, thereby avoiding the legal 
challenge provided in the bill, but increasing the 
potential for the air quality plan to ultimately 
fail. The resulting time and cost of revising a 
failed plan plus the potential impact of 
continued exposure of the public to levels of 
pollution over the health based standards may 
also be significant. 
 
In addition to notifying the business community 
potentially affected by a proposed rule that they 
may submit data or arguments as to whether the 
rule will impose significant economic burden 
upon a business or directly restrict formation, 
operation or expansion of a business (as is 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 26 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

currently the case), the bill requires that the 
governing body or its designee make a 
concerted effort to determine whether the 
proposed rule will impose these conditions.  The 
reasons for the conclusions of the business 
impact are required to be stated, and the chief 
legal officer for the governing body of the local 
government must certify that the information 
contained in the statement was prepared 
properly and accurately.   
 
4/10 Update - It’s scheduled for a working 
session tomorrow so the committee should 
either pass it or vote it down.  Mr. Dick will not 
attend and there isn’t much opportunity for 
testimony at that point.  Two amendments were 
offered at the April 1 hearing.   They would 
eliminate the small business petition and appeal 
provision which was a significant concern with 
the Bill.  However, the amendments would also 
require that a regulation could not be adopted 
until at least 48 hours after a hearing.  If that 
becomes law DBOH could no longer adopt 
regulations on the day Public Hearings are held.  
Fiscal notes show concerns that agencies don’t 
have the costs for compliance in their budgets.  
That may doom it.   
 

AB 449 
 

Assembly 
Committee on 
Ways and Means 

Exempt; In 
Committee 

Revises the use of certain proceeds 
received for purposes relating to vital 
statistics. (BDR 40-1139). 
 

Existing law requires that money collected 
pursuant to provisions of NRS 440 must be used 
for certain purposes but any other proceeds 
accruing to the State must be forwarded to the 
general fund.  This bill provides that such 
proceeds may instead be used by the Health 
Division to carry out the provisions of NRS 440 
and related regulations.  The bill also removes 
the provision which authorizes the Health 
Division to maintain a bank account for the 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Comment 

Only 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact: 

 
Hearing on 4/11 @ 3:30 pm 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 27 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

purpose of refunding overpayments of fees for 
vital statistics. 
 
This bill does not appear to have any direct 
impact on Washoe County. 
 
 
 

Req for Eval on Amend 
rec’d on April 17; emailed to 
Randy on 4/18 
 
Hearing scheduled 4/24 @ 
9:00 am; notified Randy 
 

AB 487 - 
BDR 40-120;  
 

Assembly 
Committee on 
Natural 
Resources, 
Agriculture, and 
Mining 
 

Passed; 
Referred to 
Senate 
Committee on 
Natural 
Resources. 

Makes various changes relating to 
recycling. 
 

*This will have minimal cost to the Health 
District as an agency.  It would require minor 
changes to our Waste Management Plan and our 
Solid Waste Regulations.  There will be cost to 
the general public, with additional fees for 
garbage service to reach this goal. 
 

• Priority:  Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: Yes; Dr. Iser 
• Position: Oppose 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: Yes 
• Fiscal Impact: Yes 

 
Rec’d request for Fiscal 
Note on 3/27 due 4/1; 
forwarded to Bob on 3/27; 
sent 4/2; 
 
Hearing set for 4/4 @ 12:00 
pm 
 

SB 4 
 

Senate Committee 
on Health and 
Human Services 
 

Passed as 
amended; 
referred to 
Assembly 
Committee on 
HHS – 
recommend 
amend and do 
pass 
 

 Revises provisions governing the testing of a 
person or decedent who may have exposed 
certain public employers, employees or 
volunteers to a contagious disease. (BDR 40-
265) 
 

• Priority:  
• Action:  
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance: 
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 

 
Rec’d notice of committee 
meeting on 2/23/2013; 
forwarded to Randy and Joe 
 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 28 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

SB 53 Health and Human 
Services 

Passed, title 
approved; 
Referred to 
Assembly 
Committee on 
Health and 
Human 
Services – 
Recommend 
“do pass.” 5/13 

Revises various provisions relating to 
vital statistics (BDR 40-312) 
 
This bill allows release of birth 
certificates 125 years after the date of 
birth and death certificates 50 years 
after the date of death.  It also makes 
various changes that should only 
impact the state office of vital records.  
The bill also modernizes existing 
language and allows for the use of 
electronic record keeping that is 
already largely in place.  Finally, the 
bill allows cases where deaths occur 
without medical attendance to be 
referred directly to the coroner’s 
office and shortens the time frame for 
filing certificates that require 
implementation of delayed filing 
procedures. 

The bill primarily cleans up and modernizes 
existing language and should be supported. 
 
The Washoe County Vital Records Office will 
need to change procedures for the release of 
certificates to be consistent with the new 
statutory language. 
 
Senate HHS Committee Recommends Passage 
on 3/8. 

• Priority:  Low 
• Action: Track 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Support 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: Yes 
• Fiscal Impact: 
• Hearing 3/5/2013 - @ 

3:30 pm;  
• Hearing 3/7/2013 @ 

3:30 pm 
2/8 –- Steve Gilbert, 
Supervisor for Vital 
Records, NSHD, they are not 
currently anticipating any 
opposition to the bill.  Rec’d 
and input Randy’s comments 
on 2/14 
• Hearing on 3/5 
• Hearing on 4/24; 

notified Dr. Todd. 
 

SB 65 Natural Resources Second 
reading; 
amended; first 
reprint. – 
Recommend 
“do pass.” 5/9 

Revises provisions relating to public 
water systems and certain 
laboratories.  (BDR 40-349) 
 

 • Priority:  
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 
 

Hearing – 3/7/2013 @ 
13:30 PM Room 2144; 
Hearing on 3/13 @ 9:00 
am 

• Rec’d Req for Eval –  
4/18; forwarded to Bob 
on 4/18/13 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 29 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

• Hearing on 4/30 @ 
12:30 PM; notified Bob 
 

SB 67 Senate Committee 
on Revenue and 
Economic 
Development 

In Committee; 
exemption 
effective. 
 
 
 
 

Revises provisions relating to 
tobacco.  (BDR 32-404) 
 

 • Priority:  
• Action: Monitoring 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 

SB 69 Health and Human 
Services 

Failed 4/12/13 
deadline; No 
action 

Revises provisions governing 
advanced practitioners of nursing. 
(BDR 54-549) 
 
This bill reflects a national trend to 
move away from the mandatory 
collaborative physician/Advanced 
Practitioner of Nursing relationship.  
However, it does not indicate that a 
collaborative relationship cannot be 
maintained, so it provides flexibility 
for the variety of settings that APNs 
practice.   
 

Supplemental Information from the NAC:  632 
– Nursing related to practice for certificate vs. 
masters prepared APNs.    Certificate APNs are 
required to provide documentation of 1000 
hours of practice before receiving approval to 
prescribe dangerous drugs and devices.   
 
 
A concern from the Washoe County Health 
District is that the certificate prepared Advanced 
Practitioners of Nursing would be impacted in 
some way.    The certificate graduates were 
grandfathered into practice when APN licensure 
changed to require a Masters degree. 
 
The Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 
has three certificate graduates; if their practices 
were somehow limited by a decision by the 
Board of Nursing it would dramatically impact 
safety net core public health services provided 
at the WCHD. 
 
Proposed Amendment:  Amend to include 
both certificate and Masters prepared APNs. 
 

• Priority: High 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: Yes (Stacy 

Hardie or Steve Kutz) 
• Position: Support If 

Amended 
• Ordinance: Uncertain 
• Policy: Yes 
• Fiscal Impact: 
 
Rec’d Request for Eval on 
2/26; sent to Steve and 
Stacey on 2/26; rec’d 
comments and input on 
3/1/2013. 
 

 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 30 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

SB 74 Senator Tick 
Segerblom 
 

Amended; first 
reprint. 

Revises various provisions relating to 
public records.  (BDR 19-211) 
 

 • Priority: High 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Oppose 
• Ordinance: Unknown 
• Policy: Yes 
• Fiscal Impact: Yes 
• Hearing:  2/11/13 @ 

1:30 pm 
• Hearing: 2/20/13@1:30 

pm rm. 2135 
 

• Forwarded to all DDs on 
1/23/2013; Randy and 
Steve commented on 2/6 

 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

Amendment on 4/16; 
forwarded to DDs on 
4/18 

 
Amendment does not change 
impact for CCHS 

 
   

SB 80 Senator 
Settelmeyer 

Read first time; 
Committee on 
HHS 

Makes various changes to provisions 
governing dairy products and dairy 
substitutes. 
  

We would defer to the Dairy Commission.  I 
think anything that strengthens their 
enforcement for health and safety is good; I 
dislike that they would do both dairy product 
promotion and regulate as well.  That is, at a 
national level, one of the differences between 
USDA (which does both functions) and FDA 
(which regulates but doesn’t promote). 
 

• Priority:  
• Action:  
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 

 
• Joe rec’d email from 

Larry Mathias; Joe 
replied; ask Larry and 
John their thoughts. 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 31 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

SB 92 Senate Committee 
on Health and 
Human Services 

Second 
reading; 
amended 

Makes certain changes related to the 
health of infants. (BDR 40-529) 
 
Revises NRS 442.008 requiring 
infants be tested for critical congenital 
heart disease; providing an exception 
for written parental objection; and 
notification of both state and local 
health officers.  
 

BDR revised 2/11; no material change to the 
Health District. 
(BDR  40-429) 
 
This bill requires any healthcare provider who 
attends a birth to examine the infant for critical 
congenital heart disease.  They must at least use 
pulse oximetry in conducting the examination.  
Any positive results must be reported to the 
State Health Officer and the Local Health 
Officers of the jurisdictions of both the birth and 
the mother’s residence.  They must discuss the 
condition and the treatment options with the 
parents. 
 
This bill as submitted does not appear to impose 
any duty on local public health other than to 
simply receive the reports.  It does not appear to 
require that the reports be retained nor does it 
appear to require any action on the part of the 
local entity in response to the report.  The only 
possible caveat would be the provision for the 
State Board of Health to promulgate regulations 
that might programmatically and/or fiscally 
impact local public health. 
 
 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Track 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Comment 

Only 
• Ordinance: NA 
• Policy: NA 
• Fiscal Impact: No 
 
Requested Comments on SB 
92 on 2/12; forwarded to Dr.  
Todd; rec’d and input on 
2/12 
 
Submitted Fiscal Notes 
prepared by Dr. Todd on 
1/23 @ 9:25 am; 
 
Hearing on 3/19 @ 3:30; 
emailed Randy in case he 
wanted to follow 
  
Resubmitted Fiscal Notes 
w/o changes on 2/12/2013. 
 
 
 

SB 100 
 

Senate Committee 
on Health and 
Human Services 
 

 

Passed as 
amended; 
referred to 
Assembly 
Committee on 
HHS 

Revises provisions relating to certain 
providers of emergency medical 
services. (BDR 40-501) 
 
 

This bill changes the definitions of EMT, EMT 
intermediate, and EMT advanced to EMT, EMT 
advanced, and Paramedic respectively.  It also 
ties training standards for these to the US 
Department of Transportation. 
 
This bill as submitted would not have an impact 
on the Health District unless it is amended or 
other legislation is adopted that would give 
EMT licensing and certification authority back 
to Washoe County.  Currently, the State does 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Comment 

Only 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact:  None for 

the Health District  
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 32 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

this function in any county with a population 
less than 700,000. 
 
The proposed amendment No.21 does not 
appear to have any impact on the Health 
District. 
 
Given that the main intent of the bill is to 
standardize definitions and training to those at 
the national level, there would appear to be no 
reason to oppose this legislation. 
 
Dr. Iser was notified by Pat Irwin of the 
existence of this bill; added to Washoe Bills on 
2/12/2013 
 

Hearing on 2/21 @3:30 
Room 2149 
 

Dr. Todd provided 
comments on 2/13 and they 
were input on 2/13. 
 
Forwarded to Dr. Todd, 
Stacey, and Dr. Joe. On 
2/12/2013 
Hearing on 3/5/2013 @ 3:30; 
notified Dr. Todd and Stacy 
Akurosawa 3/1/2013 
 

 

SB 116 
 

Senator Joseph 
Hardy 

Failed to meet 
4/12 deadline; 
no further 
action allows. 

Provides for establishment of 
electronic death registry system. 
(BDR 40-832). 
 
 

This is fundamentally a good idea.  It should 
theoretically save time and effort for funeral 
homes that currently have to physically collect 
these statements and deliver them to the health 
department.  The state already has an electronic 
death registry.  However, this bill does not 
appear to provide any fiscal appropriation that 
would allow the system to be upgraded so that it 
does not slow down when a host of new medical 
users need to log in.  Nor does it provide 
resources to train the new medical users in the 
use of the system.  New untrained users and 
system performance degradation could 
negatively impact work flow in the Washoe 
County Vital Records office. 
 
The primary concern with this bill is that the 
existing electronic death registry is sometimes 
very slow.  Adding additional users without 
appropriation of funds to upgrade the system 
will likely result in lower work productivity in 
local vital record offices including Washoe 

• Priority:  High 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: Yes - Todd 
• Position:  Support  if 

Amended 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy:  N/A 
• Fiscal Impact:   

 
Received Request for 
Evaluation on 2/14; 
forwarded to Dr. Todd; 
input Dr. Todd’s 
Comments on 
2/14/2013.  

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 33 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

County.  LCB staff should work with the 
Nevada State Health Division to develop a 
realistic cost estimate for necessary system 
upgrades and training. 
 
The bill should be amended to include an 
appropriation of funds that would allow the 
Nevada State Health Division to upgrade the 
current server hosing the existing electronic 
death registry so that it can accommodate a 
large number of additional users without 
performance degradation. Funding should also 
be provided to allow for development of an 
online training for physicians to utilize as they 
learn to use the system. 
 

SB 147 Senator Donald 
Gustavson 

Failed to meet 
4/12 deadline; 
no further 
action allows. 

Revises provisions governing the 
frequency of required inspections of 
the emissions of certain motor 
vehicles (BDR 40-427). 
 
Changes vehicle smog check to every 
other year, increases new vehicle 
exemption to 4 years, and doubles 
smog certificate fee to $12. 
 
Increases emissions of ozone 
precursors, potential for adverse 
health impacts, not compliant with 
SIP, reduces Air Quality revenue. 
 
Will require revisions to the Washoe 
(and Clark) County portions of State 
Implementation and Maintenance 
Plans to be prepared, noticed to the 
public with hearings, approved by the 
local governing Board, and submitted 
through the State of Nevada to the 

The State vehicle inspection and maintenance 
program is a required element of the U.S. EPA 
approved and federally enforceable State 
Implementation Plan for attainment of health-
based National Ambient Air Quality Standards.  
The proposed changes will result in increases in 
ozone precursor emissions from motor vehicles 
registered in Washoe and Clark Counties.  The 
changes are to cut the frequency of vehicle 
emissions testing from every year, to every two 
years, and to extend the new vehicle exemption 
from emissions testing.   
 
Clark County is currently not attaining the 
existing ozone standard of 75 parts per billion 
(ppb).  EPA is in the process of revising the 
ozone standard based on new scientific evidence 
of the health effects of ozone on human health 
and vegetation.  A strengthened revised ozone 
NAAQS is scheduled to be finalized in late 
2014.  EPA previously proposed for the 
standard to be set in the range of 60 to 70 ppb.  

• Priority:  High 
• Action:  Track 
• Testify:  Yes  - Kevin 

Dick or Dan Inouye 
• Position:  Oppose 
• Ordinance:  Uncertain 
• Policy:  Yes 
• Fiscal Impact:  Yes 

 
• Received Request for 

Evaluation on 2/19; 
forwarded to Kevin on 
2/19/2013; rec’d 
response on 2/22 after 5 
pm; input on 2/26 

 
Hearing on 3/14/2013 - @ 
1:30 PM – Kevin will 
present 
 
 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 34 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency.  May require additional 
control measures and regulations to be 
developed to reduce emissions from 
other ozone precursor sources such as 
construction equipment, and for these 
control measures to be incorporated 
into the revised federally enforceable 
SIPs.  The Washoe (and) Clark 
County portions of Nevada will be out 
of compliance with the federally 
enforceable SIP until the revisions are 
approved by EPA (if EPA is able to 
approve the revisions). 

Based on current existing ambient air 
monitoring date, Clark County will be out of 
attainment with a standard set in this range.  If 
the standard is set at 65 ppb or below Washoe 
County will be out of attainment with the 
standard. 
 
Sensitive populations such as children, the 
elderly, pregnant women, and people with 
asthma, COPD, or other lung diseases are 
particularly susceptible to health impacts from 
elevated ozone levels which can decrease lung 
function, cause inflammation of the airways, 
and exacerbate asthma and other lung diseases.  
People exercising or otherwise exerting 
themselves are also susceptible to health effects 
from elevated ozone levels.  
 
The legislation will reduce revenue to the 
Washoe (and Clark) County air pollution 
control agencies by one dollar per vehicle 
exempted through the additional new vehicle 
exemption period from the emissions testing 
program.  It will also eliminate funds from the 
DMV excess reserve grants provided to the 
local air agencies since the reduced number of 
new vehicles being tested will eliminate funds 
from the excess reserve account. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Reduced revenue – FY13/14 – 
($244,386); FY14/15 – ($244.386); and Effect 
on Future Biennia – ($488,772) 
 
The BDR will: 1) Increase the exemption period 
for the initial emission inspection of a new 
passenger car or new light-duty motor vehicle 
from 2 years to 4 years; 2) reduce the frequency 
of subsequent inspections of a passenger car or 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 35 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

light-duty motor vehicle from every year to 
every other year, and 3) increases the certificate 
fee from $6 to $12.  Each vehicle passing the 
emission inspection will be issued a $12 
certificate of which the Washoe County Health 
District (WCHD) will receive $2.  The BDR 
will have a negative fiscal impact by exempting 
vehicles 3 and 4 years old from the emission 
inspection program.  In Washoe County, there 
are 30,193 meeting these criteria for which the 
air pollution control agency would receive $2 
per vehicle without the exemption...  The BDR 
will also eliminate the excess reserve fund of 
the pollution control account.  The average 
excess reserve fund that the WCHD received 
over the three most recent years was $184,000.  
Future impacts were based on no increase in 
new passenger car and light-duty vehicle sales.  
Future revenue reductions are anticipated to be 
greater because of the decline of new vehicle 
purchases since the recession and the pent-up 
demand for new vehicle purchases moving 
forward.  This will lead to additional lost 
revenue from the initial 4 year exemptions,  
 

SB 148 Senator David 
Parks 

Committee on 
Natural 
Resources 

Amendment 499 makes further minor 
language/citation changes required to 
fulfill the intent of the legislation 
explained in the original bill summary 
provided below. 
 
The bill replaces the current 
distribution of excess reserve funds to 
local agencies through a grant 
program with a direct allocation of 
those funds to air agencies.  It 
eliminates am unnecessarily 
burdensome process requiring 

Provides direct allocation of DMV Excess 
Reserve Air Pollution Control funds to local 
agencies, eliminating cost burden of grant 
program. 
 
The bill replaces the current distribution of 
excess reserve funds to local agencies through a 
grant program with a direct allocation of those 
funds to air agencies.  It eliminates am 
unnecessarily burdensome process requiring 
development of a grant proposal and budget, 
review by the State Advisory Committee for 
Emissions from Motor Vehicles, approval of 

• Priority:  High 
• Action:  Track 
• Testify: Yes (Dan or 

Kevin) 
• Position:  Support 
• Ordinance:  Uncertain 
• Policy:  Yes 
• Fiscal Impact:  Yes 
 
• County requested Fiscal 

Note on 2/12; deadline 
2/19; forwarded to 
Kevin, Eileen, and Joe 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 36 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

development of a grant proposal and 
budget, review by the State Advisory 
Committee for Emissions from Motor 
Vehicles, approval of from the 
Nevada Division of Environmental 
Protection, the Division of Motor 
Vehicles, Interim Finance Committee, 
and the Board of Examiners.  It also 
eliminates quarterly reporting 
requirements, as well as review and 
approval requirements for budget 
allocations or one-year extensions of 
grant funds. 
 
Existing NRS requirements that these 
funds which result from smog 
certificate fees in Clark and Washoe 
County be expended on programs to 
improve air quality remain in effect.  
Excessive administrative burden and 
costs are eliminated. 
 
Will no longer be required to develop 
grant proposals and manage and 
report on the excess reserve funds 
separately from the Air Pollution 
Control Fund distribution to the local 
air pollution control agency. 
 

from the Nevada Division of Environmental 
Protection, the Division of Motor Vehicles, 
Interim Finance Committee, and the Board of 
Examiners.  It also eliminates quarterly 
reporting requirements, as well as review and 
approval requirements for budget allocations or 
one-year extensions of grant funds. 
 
 
Existing NRS requirements that these funds 
which result from smog certificate fees in Clark 
and Washoe County be expended on programs 
to improve air quality remain in effect.  
Excessive administrative burden and costs are 
eliminated. 
 
FY 12/13 – ($0); FY13/14 –($2,510); FY14/15 
– ($7,327); Future Biennia  -($43,430) 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The BDR will eliminate 
personnel time and expense associated with 
preparing grant proposals, quarterly reporting of 
grant accomplishments, and preparation of 
submittals to the Advisory Committee, NDEP, 
and DMV related to proposals, budget 
reallocation requests, and extension requests.  
So expenses are reported as negative.  The BDR 
has a positive fiscal impact, expenses are 
reduced.  Financial benefits occur incrementally 
as the initial proposal development costs, and 
then reporting and administration costs are 
reduced over the multi-year cycles of existing 
grants.  Labor savings result from the Air 
Quality Management Division Director and 
Health District Fiscal Compliance Officer not 
having to develop and submit a grant proposal 
FY13-14, not having to submit a proposal and 
administer a grant FY14-15, and not having to 

on 2/12; submitted 2/19 
@ 3:00 pm. 

• Received Request for 
Evaluation on 2/19; 
forwarded to Kevin and 
Eileen on 2/19/2013. 
Entered Kevin’s 
Comments on 2/26. 

• Rec’d Req for Eval on 
4/22; forwarded to 
Kevin on 4/22 
 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 37 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

develop a proposal and administer multiple 
grants in future biennia. 
 
Amendment 499 makes further minor 
language/citation changes required to fulfill the 
intent of the legislation explained in the original 
bill summary provided below. 
 
The bill replaces the current distribution of 
excess reserve funds to local agencies through a 
grant program with a direct allocation of those 
funds to air agencies.  It eliminates am 
unnecessarily burdensome process requiring 
development of a grant proposal and budget, 
review by the State Advisory Committee for 
Emissions from Motor Vehicles, approval of 
from the Nevada Division of Environmental 
Protection, the Division of Motor Vehicles, 
Interim Finance Committee, and the Board of 
Examiners.  It also eliminates quarterly 
reporting requirements, as well as review and 
approval requirements for budget allocations or 
one-year extensions of grant funds. 
 
Existing NRS requirements that these funds 
which result from smog certificate fees in Clark 
and Washoe County be expended on programs 
to improve air quality remain in effect.  
Excessive administrative burden and costs are 
eliminated. 
 

SB 154 Senator Mark 
Manendo 

Read first time. 
Referred to 
Committee on 
Commerce and 
Labor 

Revises certain provisions governing 
manufactured home parks. (BDR 10-
23) 
 

 • Priority:   
• Action: No Interest 
• Testify:  
• Position:   
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:   
• Fiscal Impact:   

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 38 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

• Received Request for 
Evaluation on 2/19; 
forwarded to Bob on 
2/19/2013; rec’d Bob’s 
comment on 2/26; does 
not affect the Health 
District 
 

SB 177 Settelmeyer, 
Hardy, Cegavske, 
Goicoechea, 
Gustavson, 
Hammond, 
Hutchison, Jones, 
Kieckhefer, 
Segerblom, 
Woodhouse, 
Wheeler 
 
 

Second 
reading; 
amended 

Prohibits a minor from committing 
certain acts relating to the possession 
and use of tobacco products. (BDR 5-
689) 

The bill criminalizes tobacco use for minors.  
This bill will not harm public health in Nevada. 
 
Currently it is against the law for a minor to 
purchase tobacco. It is not against the law for a 
minor to possess or use tobacco products. This 
bill sets up tiered enforcement with increasing 
fines and attendance at an education/cessation 
class. The third offense also allows for the 
suspension of the minor’s drivers license.  
Other communities have seen mixed results 
upon implementation of youth criminalization 
for tobacco possession. This bill will not harm 
public health in Nevada and may provide access 
to cessation services for some high risk youth. 
Organizations within the tobacco prevention 
community in Nevada are either supporting or 
remaining neutral on this bill. 
 

• Priority:  Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: Yes or a letter 

of support; Erin Dixon 
• Position:  Support As Is 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy:  No 
• Fiscal Impact:   
 

Rec’d Req for Eval on 
Amendment – on 4/16; 
forwarded to Kelli on 
4/18 

 
 

SB 183 Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Senator Justin 
Jones 
Senator Pat 
Spearman 
Senator Tick 
Segerblom 
Senator Moises 
Denis 
Senator David 

Second 
reading; 
amended 

Enacts provisions governing 
manufacturers of certain electronic 
devices. (BDR 40-556) 
 

 • Priority:   
• Action: No Interest 
• Testify:  
• Position:   
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:   
• Fiscal Impact:  

  
• Rec’d Request for Eval 

on 2/26 – Emailed 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 39 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

Parks 
Assemblyman 
David Bobzien 
 

Kevin and Bob on 
2/26/13 
 

SB 206 Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Senator Aaron 
Ford 
Senator Ruben 
Kihuen 
Senator Moises 
Denis 
Senator Justin 
Jones 
Senator Debbie 
Smith 
Assemblywoman 
Ellen Spiegel 
Assemblyman 
Jason Frierson 
Assemblyman 
James Healey 
Co-Sponsor(s): 
Senator Kelvin 
Atkinson 
Senator Barbara 
Cegavske 
Senator David 
Parks 
Senator James 
Settelmeyer 
Senator Pat 
Spearman 
Senator Joyce 
Woodhouse 
Assemblywoman 
Irene Bustamante 
Adams 

Passed as 
amended; 
referred to 
Assembly 
Committee on 
HHS 

Revises provisions relating to food 
establishments.  (BDR 40-935) – 
Cottage Industries – exempts certain 
types of low risk food from having 
permits if they are prepare din the 
home. 
 

We have had several discussions with everyone 
involved in this bill over the last few days.  We 
are in support of the proposed amendments that 
Senator Ford will be presenting at hearing on 
March 19. 
 
This Bill would allow low risk foods as 
designated by AFDO to be prepared in the home 
and exempted from permitting if certain 
requirements are met.  They have to be labeled 
properly, including a statement saying that they 
have not been inspected by a Health Authority.  
In addition, they would have to be direct sales 
(no phone or internet) and occur at the seller’s 
home or at a permitted farmers market.  Would 
also require them to be registered with the local 
Health Authority who would then provide them 
with recommended practices of operation. 
 
Senator Ford will be amending. 
 

• Priority:  High 
• Action: Tracking 
• Testify: Yes (Iser, 

Sack, McNinch, 
Macaluso) 

• Position:  Support If 
Amended 

• Ordinance: No 
• Policy:  Yes 
• Fiscal Impact:   
 
• Rec’d Request for Eval 

on 3/4 – Emailed to Bob 
on 3/5/13; input on 3/18 
 
Hearing on 3/19 @3:30 
PM Room 2149; 
notified Bob on 3/15; 
Bob and Dr. Iser will 
attend 
Hearing on 3/26 @ 3:30 
pm; forwarded to Bob 
on 3/25/13 
Hearing on 4/13 @ 1:30 
pm 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 40 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

Assemblyman 
Wesley Duncan 
 

SB 315 
 

Senator Moises 
Denis 
 

Second 
reading; 
amended 

Revises provisions relating to health 
districts organized under NRS 
439.362. 
 

NRS 439.362 governs health districts created in 
jurisdictions with populations over 700,000. 

• Priority:   
• Action: Monitoring 
• Testify: 
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:   
• Fiscal Impact:   

 
SB 316 
 

Senator Moises 
Denis 

Passed as 
amended; 
referred to 
Assembly 
Committee on 
Commerce and 
Labor 

Requires provisions relating to 
materials recovery facilities.  (BDR 
54-1067). 

It requires contractors to dispose of their 
demolition waste in a materials recovery facility 
if there is one within 15 miles.  We have one in 
the area and we have concerns as to whether or 
not it could handle all this waste and it would be 
very difficult to enforce 

• Priority:   
• Action: Monitoring 
• Testify: 
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:   
• Fiscal Impact:   

Bob attended Senate 
Commerce and Labor 
Hearing 3/25 
 
Hearing on 4/1 2013; 
Bob will attend hearing 
  

SB 318 
 

Senator Joseph 
Hardy 

Second 
reading; 
amended 

AN ACT relating to insurance; 
requiring the Legislative Committee 
on Health Care to conduct an interim 
study concerning claims, coverage 
and payments under policies of dental 
and health insurance; and providing 
other matters properly relating 
thereto. 
 

 • Priority:   
• Action:  
• Testify: 
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:   
• Fiscal Impact:   

 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

4/18; forwarded to Steve 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 41 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

SB 331 
 

 Failed to meet 
4/12 deadline; 
no further 
action allowed. 
 

Exempts certain home-based 
businesses from the requirement to 
obtain a state business license. 
 

 • Priority:  
• Action: No Interest 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact:  
Rec’d Req for Eval on 3/21; 
sent to Bob; Hearing on 4/2 
@ 8:00 am 
 

SB 390 Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Senator Tick 
Segerblom 
Assemblyman 
David Bobzien 
Assemblyman 
Skip Daly 
 

In Committee; 
Notice of 
eligibility for 
exemption. 

Requires anyone who wants to do 
hydraulic fracturing to get approval 
from the Nevada Division of 
Environmental Protection. 
 

Given the controversy nationwide over 
“fracking,” we believe it is a good idea to have 
state oversight on this. 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Support As Is 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact:  
 
Rec’d Req for Eval on 3/21; 
sent to Bob 
 
Hearing on 4/2 @ 3:15 PM; 
Bob will attend 
 
Hearing on 4/9 @ 1:00 PM; 
notified Bob 
 

 
SB 399 Senator Ruben 

Kihuen 
In Committee Revises provisions relating to special 

fuels. 
 

Kevin is still trying to determine impacts. 
3/29/2013 

• Priority: Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: No 
• Position: Support As Is 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact:  
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 42 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

Rec’d Req for Eval on 3/21; 
sent to Kevin 
 
Hearing scheduled on 4/9 @ 
1:00 pm; notified Kevin on 
4/4 
 
Hearing on 4/11 @ 1:00 pm; 
notified Kevin on 4/11 @ 9 
am 
 

SB 410 Primary 
Sponsor(s): 
Senator David 
Parks 
Senator Pat 
Spearman 
Senator Tick 
Segerblom 
Senator Ruben 
Kihuen 
Assemblyman 
James Healey 
Assemblyman 
James Ohrenschall 
 

In Committee AN ACT relating to hypodermic 
devices; authorizing certain persons to 
establish a program for the safe 
distribution and disposal of 
hypodermic devices and certain other 
material; providing that the possession 
of a residual amount of a controlled 
substance is not a criminal offense in 
certain circumstances; removing 
hypodermic devices from the list of 
paraphernalia that is prohibited for 
delivery, sale, possession, 
manufacture or use in this State; 
providing that hypodermic devices 
may be sold or furnished without a 
prescription if not prohibited by 
federal law in certain circumstances; 
repealing a provision which makes it a 
crime to misuse a hypodermic device; 
and providing other matters properly 
relating thereto. 
 

The WCHD supports this bill as it is an 
excellent public health measure that will reduce 
the spread of communicable diseases that can be 
spread by blood or body fluids, including HIV, 
Hepatitis B and Hepatitis C by decriminalizing 
access to clean syringes. 
  
Our Health Officer has been in discussion with 
Sheriff Haley regarding the law enforcement 
perspective, and to garner support. WCHD has 
been a partner of the Nevada Public Health 
Alliance for Syringe Access, which has been 
working for the past few years to change 
legislation to allow access to clean syringes, and 
will work to set up programs per SB 410. 
 
4/17/2013 – Revisions have been made in 
agreement with the Sheriff’s office and we are 
able to support with all the revisions. 
 

• Priority: High 
• Action: Track 
• Testify: Dr. Iser, Kutz, 

J. Howell 
• Position: Support As Is 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy: No 
• Fiscal Impact:  
 
Rec’d Req for Eval on 3/21; 
sent to Joe, Steve, Candy and 
Stacy 
 
(Hearing on 4/4 @ 3:30 pm; 
notified Joe, Steve, and Jen); 
hearing on 4/10; hearing on 
4/11 @ 3:30; notified Joe, 
Steve, and Jen. 
 
Sent Ltr of Support 3/29 
 
Full Senate vote today-
4/22/2013 – Passed 
 
Hearing on 5/8; notified 
Steve, Jen, and Kevin 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 43 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

SB 442 
 

Senate Committee 
on Education 

 

Passed as 
amended; 
referred to 
Assembly 

Proposes the removal of several 
school district requirements, including 
the collection of height and weight 
data. 
 
 
One of the mandates to be eliminated 
with this legislation would be the 
height/weight data collection in 
schools.  It would change the sunset 
of the current legislation from June 
30, 2015 to June 30, 2013.  Washoe 
County depends on this data for 
surveillance of childhood overweight 
and obesity and it is important to 
measure health as well as to be used 
as a tool to improve students’ 
scholastic achievements. 
 
We are requesting no change to 
Section 5 chapter 285 Statutes of 
Nevada 2009.  (The current bill is 
proposing to change this from 2015 to 
2013) 
 

A quick update on SB 442.  
• SB442 had passed the Senate and will be 

going to the Assembly.   
• It amends the height and weight collection 

mandate to sunset in June of 2013 vs. the 
current sunset of June 2015.   

• SNHD will be talking to the Clark County 
School District to see if they could work to 
remove this item from the bill. The recent 
CTG funding the CCSD got may depend on 
this data for their evaluation. 

• I reached out to Lindsay Anderson about 
WCSD’s stance on this and her response 
included: We are aware of this bill and 
worked with all other 16 school districts 
across the state to develop it.  While we 
didn’t include the height/weight collection 
in our list of requests to eliminate, many 
other districts did.  So, it’s tough for us to 
revise the bill since it was a group effort 
statewide.  

• We’re hoping it can be removed by the 
school districts vs. having to fight it in the 
Assembly. 

 

• Priority:  High 
• Action:  Tracking 
• Testify:  Yes, Steve 

Kutz (or potentially 
Kelli Seals or Candy 
Hunter w/agreed upon 
talking points from the 
Interim DHO) 

• Position: Support if 
Amended to Remove 
language changing the 
expiration date of 
Section 5 of Chapter 
285. 

• Ordinance: No 
• Policy:  No 
• Fiscal Impact:  No 

 
At the Assembly 
Education Committee 
Hearing on Monday, 
May 6, 2013, Steve 
Kutz testified opposing 
the repeal of the height 
and weight collection by 
the school district.  The 
committee moved to 
discuss this and other 
issues with the bill in a 
workgroup session, 
which will be held 
Friday, May10th at 8:00 
am in Carson City.  
Both Steve Kutz and 
Kelli Seals will attend. 
 
 
 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 44 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

SB 448 Senate Committee 
on Health and 
Human Services 

In Committee Enacts certain provisions to promote 
federally qualified health centers; 
authorizing a county or district 
hospital to take actions necessary to 
establish one or more new or existing 
facilities as federally qualified health 
centers; and providing other matters 
properly relating thereto. 
 

This bill is targeted at counties with medically 
underserved, without access to an FQHC. This 
bill will allow county or district hospitals to 
provide public health care services.  
 
This bill does not impact Washoe County as we 
have the Washoe County Health District, and an 
FQHC – HAWC.  
 

• Priority:  Low 
• Action:  Monitor 
• Testify:  No 
• Position: Support As Is 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy:  No 
• Fiscal Impact:  No 

 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/26; forwarded to Joe 
and Steve 3/26/13; input 
on 3/29 

• Hearing on 4/9 @3:30 
pm 
 

SB 449 
 

Senate Committee 
on Health and 
Human Services 

Second 
reading; 
amended 
 

Revises certain provisions relating to 
the unlawful disposal of solid waste, 
sewage, or other similar materials. 
(BDR 40-121) 
 

 • Priority:  High 
• Action:  Tracking 
• Testify:  Yes, if needed, 

Bob Sack 
• Position: Support 
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:   
• Fiscal Impact:   

 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/26; forwarded to Joe 
and Bob on 3/26/13 

• Hearing 4/1 @ 8:00 am 
• Hearing on 4/9 @3:30 

pm; notified Bob on 4/5 
• Hearing on 4/13 @ 

1:30; Bob will attend 
 

SB 450 
 

Senate Committee 
on Health and 
Human Services 

 

Second 
reading; 
amended and 
reprinted 

Revises the qualification for certain 
district health officers.  (BDR 40-
1081). 
 

This bill would change the qualifications for the 
Health Officer only for Southern Nevada.  It 
removes the requirement for ten years of 
management experience and removes the 

• Priority:  Low 
• Action: Monitor 
• Testify: Yes, Dr. Iser 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 45 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

 requirement for a master’s degree in public 
health, health care administration, or a related 
field.  We oppose those changes on the grounds 
that this position requires an understanding of 
public health and experience in management to 
be successful.  The new requirement, which 
allows the Health Officer to have 5 years of 
experience in population-based health care, is 
not the same as management experience.  We do 
support the change that allows an applicant to 
be eligible for a license to practice medicine. 
 
Recommend that the original wording be kept 
but allow an applicant to be eligible for a 
Nevada license. 
 
Amended as advised.  Support as Amended. 
 

• Position: Support as 
Amended 

• Ordinance: No 
• Policy:  No 
• Fiscal Impact:   

 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/26; forwarded to Joe 
on 3/26/13; Input on 
3/29 

 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

4/18; forwarded to Dr. 
Iser 

SB 453 
 

Senate Committee 
on Health and 
Human Services 

In Committee Provides for schools to obtain and 
administer auto-injectable 
epinephrine. 

Dr. Iser’s concern is with Section 4 which 
requires the Health District to train charter 
schools. 
 
Basically the Health District can support with 
clarification and definition in Section 4 of what 
the appropriate role of Health Officers is.  Will 
work with sponsors on this.  Dr. Iser did talk 
with someone working on this bill afterwards, 
and he suggested taking out any role for Health 
Officers—Dr. Iser agreed that this would 
resolve the issue. 
 
 

• Priority:  High 
• Action:  Monitor 
• Testify: Yes, Dr. Iser 
• Position: Support If 

Amended 
• Ordinance: No 
• Policy:  No 
• Fiscal Impact:  No 

 
 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/21; sent to Bob; 
Hearing on 4/2 @ 8:00 
am 

• Dr. Iser testified at 4/4 
Hearing 

• Rec’d Req for Eval on 
4/5; forwarded to Dr. 
Iser; input on 4/10/2013 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 46 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 



2013 Legislative Activity Report 

BDR or Bill 
# 

Primary 
Sponsor 

 
Status 

 
Summary 

 
Background/Analysis/Fiscal Impact 

Recommendation & 
Staff Assignment 

SB 485 
 

Senate Committee 
on Finance 

In Committee; 
Notice of 
Exemption 

Makes various changes concerning 
governmental financial 
administration. 
 

 • Priority:   
• Action:  No Interest 
• Testify: 
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:   
• Fiscal Impact:   

 
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/26; forwarded to 
Eileen and Joe on 
3/26/13; Eileen said no 
interest on 4/4 

 
SB 487 
 

  Makes various changes related to 
recycling. (BDR 40-120) 
 

 • Priority:   
• Action: 
• Testify: 
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:   
• Fiscal Impact:   
• Rec’d Req for Eval on 

3/26; forwarded to Bob 
on 3/29/13 

• Hearing on 4/11 at 
12:30 pm; forwarded to 
Bob on 4/5 
 

SJR 9  
 

 Passed; In 
Assembly 
Committee 

Urges the Director of the Bureau of 
Land Management to expedite the 
process for approving special 
recreation permits for certain uses of 
federal public lands in Nevada.  (BDR 
R – 1008). 
 

 • Priority:  
• Action: No Interest 
• Testify:  
• Position:  
• Ordinance:  
• Policy:  
• Fiscal Impact: 

 

DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.D. 

Page 47 
5/13/2013   12:00 pm 




























































































































































































































































































































































































































	May 23 DBOH Agenda
	Agenda Item No. 5. - 03.07.2013 Minutes
	Agenda Item No. 5 - 03.28.2013 Minutes
	Agenda Item No. 8.A.1.a.
	Agenda Item No. 8.A.1.b.
	Agenda Item No. 8.A.1.c.
	Agenda Item No. 8.C.1.
	Agenda Item No. 8.D.
	Agenda Item No. 10.
	Agenda Item No. 11.
	Agenda Item No. 12.
	Agenda Item No. 13.
	Agenda Item No. 14.
	Agenda Item No. 15.
	Agenda Item No. 16.
	Agenda Item No. 17.A.
	Agenda Item No. 17.B.
	Agenda Item No. 17.C.
	Agenda Item No. 17.D.
	Agenda Item No. 17.F.

